

CURRICULUM VITAE OF TOMMASO TRINCHERA

Assistant Professor of Criminal Law at Bocconi University

Date of birth: December 23, 1987

Citizenship: Italian

Place of residence: Milan, Italy

E-mail:

Biographical notes

Università Commerciale Luigi Bocconi

Department of Legal Studies

Via Röntgen, 1 – 20136 Milan (Italy)

Phone: +39 02 5836 5392

E-mail: tommaso.trinchera@unibocconi.it

Contact information

Tommaso obtained his **high school diploma** from Liceo Classico A. Manzoni (Milan, Italy) in 2005. He successfully completed high school program in 4 years according to Law no. 425/1997 because of his excellent grades (the typical program is expected to last 5 years).

Education

He **graduated *magna cum laude in law*** in 2010 from the University of Milan. His dissertation dealt with criminal liability for health and safety breaches (Italian title: *La tutela penale in tema di sicurezza sul lavoro: profili problematici*), mentor professor Francesco Viganò. The thesis has been awarded the **prize** for the best dissertation on work health and safety (academic year 2010) sponsored by A.N.M.I.L. Foundation. The thesis has been **published** by the law review *Diritto penale contemporaneo* (ISSN 2039-1676).

Tommaso obtained his **PhD** in Law of Business and Commerce from Bocconi University in 2016 under the supervision of professor Francesco Viganò. His doctoral thesis dealt with the safeguards that the Italian Constitution and the human rights conventions require for the confiscation of proceeds of crime (Italian title: *Lo statuto costituzionale e convenzionale della confisca della ricchezza illecita*).

Since September 2021 Tommaso has been **Assistant Professor of Criminal Law** at Bocconi University.

Academic experience

In November 2020 he received his “**habilitation**” for **associate professorships in the Italian Universities**. He was unanimously declared as associate professor of criminal law by the Italian National Scientific Committee (ASN).

From 2017 to 2021 Tommaso was **researcher with grant** in Criminal Law at Bocconi University in Milan. He was appointed as a **lecturer in Criminal Law** at Bocconi University Law School in 2018, and at University of Turin in 2020.

Before joining Bocconi, Tommaso obtained a **junior research fellowship** by the **University of Milan** (2016-2017). He was involved in the research project “JUSTECH” coordinated by professor Francesco Viganò (see below).

In 2014 Tommaso was visiting fellow at the **Ludwig Maximilian Universität – Institut für die gesamten Strafrechtswissenschaften** in Munich (Germany), hosted by professor Dr. jur. Helmut Satzger.

Visitorships

In 2019 he spent a research period at the **University of Barcelona – Facultad de Derecho** in Barcelona (Spain), hosted by professor Sergi Cardenal Montraveta. In the same year he was also visiting scholar at the **University of Pennsylvania Law School – Penn Law** in Philadelphia (United States), hosted by professor Louis S. Rulli.

Tommaso teaches criminal law in the compulsory course “**Criminal Law – Module 1**” (80 hours) at Bocconi University Law School (academic years 2018/19, 2019/20, 2020/21, and 2021/22). The course and, in particular, the teacher were greatly appreciated by the students (performance index and teacher performance index > 9/10).

Teaching

In 2020 Tommaso taught criminal law in the compulsory course “**Principles of Criminal Law**” (54 hours) at University of Turin – Global Law and Transnational Legal Studies Course (academic year 2020/21). The course is taught **in English**. The course was greatly appreciated by the students (satisfaction index > 95%).

In 2015 he taught two classes in the course “**Advanced Criminal Law**” (4 hours) at the University of Milan Law School, and a class in the course “**Criminal Law – Module II**” (3 hours) at Bocconi University.

Tommaso also teaches criminal law at the **post-graduate Law School** (*Scuola di Specializzazione per le Professioni Legali*) of Bocconi University and of the University of Pavia (6 hours in the academic year 2016/17; and 10 hours in the academic years 2017/18, 2018/19, 2019/20, and 2020/21). He was also appointed as the **scientific and teaching coordinator** of the School.

He has been a lecturer of criminal law at the **Master of Science in Clinical Management of Pain** and the **Advanced Program in Anti-corruption and Prevention of Misconduct in Public Administrations and Businesses** (University of Milan).

From 2013 to 2017 he served as a **teaching assistant** to professor Francesco Viganò (University of Milan) and to professor Melissa Miedico (Bocconi University).

Tommaso has successfully completed the learning requirements for **“BEAT – Bocconi Excellence in Advanced Teaching”** and he obtained the Certificate of Completion by BUILT – Bocconi University Innovations in Learning and Teaching.

Tommaso presented, with Camilla Mostardini, a paper titled *“Here, There and Everywhere”*: is Double Criminality a Requirement for Extraterritorial Jurisdiction at the **W.G. Hart Legal Workshop 2021** on “New Perspectives on Jurisdiction and the Criminal Law” organized and hosted by the **Institute of Advanced Legal Studies – University of London School**, 26-28 April 2021. They won the prize for “the best video-presentation” (see below).

Presentations at conferences and seminars

He presented a paper on *Confiscation and Asset Recovery: Better Tools to Fight Bribery and Corruption Crime* at the **annual Conference of the International Society for the Reform of Criminal Law** “Bribery and Corruption: Modern Approaches to an Eternal Problem”, held in Brisbane (Australia), 9-12 July 2019.

He presented a paper on *Different Ways of Punishment Affect Recidivism among Italian Criminals* at the **5th Biennial International Conference** hosted by the **Crime, Justice and Social Democracy Research Centre**, Queensland University of Technology, held in Gold Cost (Australia), 15-17 July 2019.

Tommaso presented, with Giulia Vallar (University of Milan), a paper on international issues and criminal liability in surrogate motherhood birth certificates obtained abroad (Italian title: *La surrogazione di maternità*

all'estero tra riconoscimento dello status filiationis e profili di responsabilità penale), at the **international conference “Right on the move”**, held in Trento (Italy), 16-17 October 2014.

Tommaso has been a speaker at several seminars hosted by the University of Milan (PhD and Law School), and he has also given speeches at the workshops “Bocconi Learning Lab – Explore, Learn, do”.

In 2013 Tommaso participated in a **research project on organized crime’s victimization of legitimate business** (Italian title: “*L’espansione della criminalità organizzata in nuovi ambiti territoriali e le sue infiltrazioni nel sistema sociale e nell’attività d’impresa*”). Principal investigator: professor Alberto Alessandri (Bocconi University). The project was supported by the Milan Chamber of Commerce, the *Centro Nazionale di Prevenzione e Difesa Sociale*, the Department of Legal Studies “Angelo Sraffa” of Bocconi University, and the CREDI *Centro di Ricerche Europee sul Diritto e la Storia dell’Impresa “Ariberto Mignoli”*.

In 2016 he participated in the **research project JUSTECH** aiming at digitalizing criminal proceedings in Italy. Coordinator: professors Francesco Viganò and Gian Luigi Gatta. The project was supported by the Italian Department of Justice, the University of Milan, the University of Pavia, and the Politecnico University of Milan.

Tommaso, with Camilla Mostardini, won the **WG Hart Legal Workshop 2021 prize for “Best Video Presentation”** for the paper “*Here, There and Everywhere*”: *is Double Criminality a Requirement for Extraterritorial Jurisdiction?* The prize was sponsored by the Institute of Advanced Legal Studies – University of London.

Tommaso is one of the recipients of the “**2018-19 Teaching Awards**” (according to student satisfaction), sponsored by Bocconi University.

Tommaso won a **prize for the best degree thesis** on the topic work health and safety (2° Concorso per tesi di laurea sul tema della Sicurezza sul Lavoro), sponsored by A.N.M.I.L. Foundation, Rome, Italy.

He is a **member of the board of editors** of two Italian law journals: *Diritto penale contemporeaneo – Rivista trimestrale* (ISSN 2240-7618) and *Sistema penale*. He is a member of the editorial staff of the online forum for the international community of criminal law scholars “*Criminal Justice*

Research projects

Awards and scholarships

Miscellaneous

Network” (ISSN 2611-8858). From 2010 to 2019 he was a member of the board of editors of the Italian law journal *Diritto penale contemporaneo* (ISSN 2039-1676).

He served as a **reviewer** for the *International Journal of Law, Crime and Justice*.

He has been a **member of the scientific board** for the organization of several conferences and seminars (such as the national annual congress of the *Association Internationale de Droit Pénal*, held in Milan on 23-24 March 2018; the *lunch seminars* on confiscation and fundamental rights, held in Milan on 10 March, 28 April, 26 May, and 16 June 2018).

From 2010 to 2012 Tommaso worked as a trainee lawyer at Stefano Lalomia and Carlo Baccaredda Boy law firm in Milan. He was **admitted to the Milan Bar** in 2013.

Tommaso speaks **Italian** (native), **English** (fluent), **German** (good), **French** and **Spanish** (written and oral understanding).

Language skills

His main field of research is criminal law. He is the author of a number of publications on several topics: legal theory, doctrine of transferred intent, confiscation, crimes committed in labor and medical field, thereby included surrogate motherhood and medically assisted techniques, criminal jurisdiction over offences committed abroad.

Research interests

His publications include:

Publications

- (1) CONFISCARE SENZA PUNIRE? UNO STUDIO SULLO STATUTO DI GARANZIA DELLA CONFISCA DELLA RICCHEZZA ILLECITA (Giappichelli 2020)
- (2) STUDIARE SUI CASI. MATERIALI INTEGRATIVI PER IL CORSO DI DIRITTO PENALE – PARTE GENERALE (Giappichelli 2020) (with F. Viganò & M. Miedico)
- (3) *Confisca e principio di proporzione*, 6 DIR. PEN. PROC. 826 (2021) (*)
- (4) *Transferred Intent in Italian Criminal Law: Sentencing Rule for Multiple Offense Scenarios*, 23 NEW CRIMINAL LAW REVIEW 636 (2020) (*)

Books

Case books

Selected law review articles

(*) Peer reviewed.

- (5) *Confisca senza condanna e diritto dell'Unione Europea: nessun vincolo per il legislatore nazionale*, 3 RIV. IT. DIR. PROC. PEN. 1637 (2020)
- (6) *Civil Forfeiture and Italian Preventive Confiscation: Is a Comparison Really Possible?* (Italian title: *Civil forfeiture e confisca di prevenzione: quale comparazione possibile?*), 4 DIR. PEN. CONT. – RIV. TRIM. 164 (2020) (*)
- (7) *Confiscation and Asset Recovery: Better Tools to Fight Bribery and Corruption Crime*, 31 CRIMINAL LAW FORUM 49 (2020) (*)
- (8) *Criminal Jurisdiction over Offences committed Abroad and Surrogate Motherhood Services obtained in a Foreign Country* (Italian title: *Limiti spaziali all'applicazione della legge penale italiana e maternità surrogata all'estero*), 3 RIV. IT. DIR. PROC. PEN. 1391 (2017) (*)
- (9) *La Corte europea di fronte alla minaccia di attentati terroristici: tra obblighi di prevenzione e limiti imposti all'uso della "forza letale"*, 3 RIV. IT. DIR. PROC. PEN. 1200 (2017)
- (10) *Issues Regarding the Doctrine of Transferred Intent* (Italian title: *Questioni in tema di aberratio ictus*), 3 RIV. IT. DIR. PROC. PEN. 1412 (2015) (*)
- (11) *La surrogazione di maternità all'estero: trascrizione dell'atto di nascita e profili di responsabilità penale*, DIR. IMMIGRAZIONE E CITTADINANZA 34 (2015) (with G. Vallar) (*)
- (12) *Criminal Liability in Surrogate Motherhood Services Obtained Abroad: Between Alterations of Status and Misrepresentations of Personal Qualities to Public Officials* (Italian title: *Profili di responsabilità penale in caso di surrogazione di maternità all'estero: tra alterazione di stato e false dichiarazioni a pubblico ufficiale su qualità personali*), 1 RIV. IT. DIR. PROC. PEN. 418 (2015) (*)
- (13) *Superamento dei limiti di rumore e responsabilità ex art. 659 c.p.: il caso Ciampino*, 11 CORR. MERITO 1081 (2011)
- (14) LA NOZIONE DI INFERMITÀ MENTALE NELLA GIURISPRUDENZA PENALE, in DIECI ANNI DI REMS: UN'ANALISI INTERDISCIPLINARE (M. Pelissero, L. Scomparin & G. Torrente eds.) (forthcoming 2021)
- (15) *Commentary on Articles 240-240-bis of the Italian Penal Code*, in CODICE PENALE COMMENTATO (E. Dolcini & G.L. Gatta eds., 5th ed.) (forthcoming 2021)

Selected book chapters

(*) Peer reviewed.

- (16) *Novità in materia di confisca*, in IL LIBRO DELL'ANNO DEL DIRITTO 2015 TRECCANI, 137 (2015)
- (17) *Commentary on Articles 579-580 of the Italian Penal Code*, in CODICE PENALE COMMENTATO 2919 (G. Marinucci & E. Dolcini eds., 4th ed., 2015) (with A. Valsecchi)
- (18) *Commentary on Articles 589-590 of the Italian Penal Code*, in CODICE PENALE COMMENTATO 3086 (G. Marinucci & E. Dolcini eds., 4th ed., 2015) (with G.L. Gatta and G.P. Volpe)
- (19) *La surrogazione di maternità all'estero tra riconoscimento dello status filiationis e profili di responsabilità penale*, in RIGHTS ON THE MOVE – RAINBOW FAMILIES IN EUROPE 241 (C. Casonato & A. Schuster eds. 2014) (with G. Vallar) **Conference proceedings**
- (20) *“Here, There and Everywhere”*: is Double Criminality a Requirement for Extraterritorial Jurisdiction? (with C. Mostardini) **Working papers**
- (21) *Confisca del profitto in caso di prescrizione del reato: la Corte d'Assise d'Appello di Milano estende il principio affermato dalle S.U. Lucci anche alla confisca del profitto ex art. 240 co. 1 c.p.*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2019) **Other law review articles and book chapters**
- (22) *Approvata dalla camera una proposta di riforma in materia di legittima difesa*, 5 DIR. PEN. CONT. 315 (2017)
- (23) *Monitoraggio Corte Edu aprile 2017*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2017)
- (24) *Introdotte nuove ipotesi speciali di confisca per dare attuazione alla direttiva 2014/42/UE*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2016)
- (25) *Monitoraggio Corte Edu giugno 2016*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2016) (reprinted in 3 RIV. IT. DIR. PROC. PEN. 2010, 2016)
- (26) *Il diritto del terzo estraneo al giudizio di impugnare la sentenza che ha disposto la confisca dei beni: la parola alla Corte costituzionale*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2016)
- (27) *Aberratio ictus plurioffensiva e tentativo di omicidio: quando a essere uccisa è la vittima designata e ferita la vittima colpita per errore*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2015)
- (28) *Aberratio ictus (art. 82 c.p.) e molestie (art. 660 c.p.) mediante l'invio di MMS*, in PARERI (IM)POSSIBILI DI PENALE 51 (F. Basile ed., 2015) (reprinted in TRACCE IPERSETTORIALI PENALE. MAGISTRATURA E CONCORSI SUPERIORI 49, 2015)

- (29) *Maternità surrogata all'estero (art. 12,co. 6, L. n. 40/2004; art. 9 c.p.)*, in PARERI (IM)POSSIBILI DI PENALE 352 (F. Basile ed., 2015) (reprinted in TRACCE IPERSETTORIALI PENALE. MAGISTRATURA E CONCORSI SUPERIORI 346, 2015)
- (30) *Maternità surrogata all'estero e responsabilità penale: il dibattito prosegue con una sentenza del Tribunale di Varese che si adegua ai principi espressi dalla Corte EDU e assolve gli imputati*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2014)
- (31) *La sentenza delle Sezioni Unite sulla rilevanza dei redditi non dichiarati al fisco ai fini della confisca di prevenzione*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2014)
- (32) *Viola l'art. 8 della CEDU lo Stato che non riconosce il rapporto di filiazione costituito all'estero ricorrendo alla surrogazione di maternità*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2014)
- (33) *Ancora in tema di alterazione di stato e procreazione medicalmente assistita all'estero: una sentenza di condanna del Tribunale di Brescia*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2014)
- (34) *La sentenza delle Sezioni Unite in tema di confisca di beni societari e reati fiscali*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2014)
- (35) *Alterazione di stato e maternità surrogata all'estero: una pronuncia assolutoria del Tribunale di Milano*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2014)
- (36) *Caso ILVA: la Cassazione esclude la confisca per equivalente del profitto dei reati ambientali*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2014)
- (37) *Confisca per equivalente di beni appartenenti alla società e reati tributari: la parola passa alle Sezioni Unite*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2013)
- (38) *Misure personali di prevenzione: nel caso di sospensione dell'esecuzione per lo stato di detenzione dell'interessato, la pericolosità va riverificata a sospensione esaurita*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2013)
- (39) *Manipolazione del mercato e giudizio di accertamento del pericolo concreto: il caso FIAT*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2013) (with F. Modugno and G. Sassaroli)
- (40) *Infortuni sul lavoro e responsabilità degli enti ex d.lgs. n. 231/2001: un'altra sentenza di assoluzione. Disorientamento interpretativo o rigoroso garantismo?*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2013)
- (41) *Tentativo di frode in commercio e detenzione di prodotti con marcatura CE contraffatta*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2013)
- (42) *La sentenza del Tribunale di Roma nella vicenda degli appalti per il G8 e le "grandi opere": una ipotesi ante litteram di corruzione per l'esercizio della funzione?*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2013)

- (43) *Contratto di prestazione d'opera e responsabilità del committente in tema di sicurezza sul lavoro*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2012)
- (44) *In tema di dolo (eventuale) e fattispecie omissive in materia ambientale*, in *Dir. pen. cont.*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2012)
- (45) *La tutela penale in tema di sicurezza sul lavoro: profili problematici – Tesi di laurea*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2012)
- (46) *Comportamento colposo del lavoratore infortunato e responsabilità penale del datore di lavoro*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2011)
- (47) *In tema di attività medica e causalità della colpa*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2011)
- (48) *La Cassazione sulla strage di Nassiryah: l'adempimento dell'ordine del superiore non giustifica l'omesso impedimento dell'evento per negligenza o imprudenza*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2011)
- (49) *Falsità ideologica in certificazioni amministrative ed esercizio abusivo della professione medica* (nota a Cass. pen. Sez. VI, sent. 8 febbraio 2011, n. 13315), DIR. PEN. CONT. (2011)
- (50) *In tema di tentativo del delitto di cui all'art. 377 bis c.p.*, DIR. PEN. CONT. (2011)
- (51) *Applicabili all'ente le misure cautelari interdittive in relazione ai delitti di corruzione internazionale* (nota a Cass. pen. Sez. VI, sent. 30 settembre 2010, n. 42701), DIR. PEN. CONT. (2010)
- (52) *Furto di parmigiano in un supermercato per un valore di 120 euro: negata l'attenuante* (nota a Cass. pen. Sez. IV, sent. 21 aprile 2010, n. 31391), DIR. PEN. CONT. (2010)
- (53) (From Spanish to Italian) Núria Mallandrich Miret, *Le misure cautelari nel processo penale spagnolo a carico delle persone giuridiche*, in DIRITTI FONDAMENTALI E PROCESSO ALL'ENTE 123 (L. Lupária, L. Marafioti, & G. Paolozzi eds., 2018)
- (54) *Conference Review: Diritto e processo penale fra separazione accademica e dialettica applicativa*, 2 RIV. IT. DIR. PROC. PEN. 1035 (2013)
- (55) *Book review: A.M. Stile ed., Democrazia e autoritarismo nel diritto penale*, 2 RIV. IT. DIR. PROC. PEN. 703 (2012)
- (56) *Book review: A. Alessandri, Diritto penale e attività economiche*, 1 RIV. IT. DIR. PROC. PEN. 234 (2011)

Translations

Book reviews